MINUTES _
LAKE COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD
March 4, 2020

The Lake County Planning and Zoning Board met on Wednesday, March 4, 2020, in County
Commission Chambers on the second floor of the Lake County Administration Building to
consider petitions for rezoning requests.

The recommendations of the Lake County Planning and Zoning Board will be transmitted to
the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for their public hearing to be held on Tuesday,
March 24, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. in the County Commission Chambers on the second floor of the
County Administration Building, Tavares, Florida.

Members Present:

Sandy Gamble, Chairman School Board Representative
Kathryn McKeeby, Secretary District 1

Laura Jones Smith District 2

Tim Morris, Vice-Chairman District 3

Rick Gonzalez District 4

Cori Todd District 5

Jim Hamilton At-Large Representative

Members Not Present:
Donald Heaton Ex-Officio Non-Voting Military

Staff Present:
Tim McClendon, AICP, Director, Office of Planning & Zoning
Steve Greene, AICP, Chief Planner, Office of Planning & Zoning
Emily Johnson, Planner, Office of Planning and Zoning
Donna Bohrer, Office Associate, Office of Planning & Zoning
Josh Pearson, Deputy Clerk, Board Support

Chairman Sandy Gamble called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m., noted that a quorum was
present, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. He remarked that the Lake County Planning and
Zoning Board was an advisory board to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) and that
this Board was responsible for reviewing proposed changes to the Lake County
Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan), zoning, conditional uses, mining site plans, and making
recommendations on these applications to the BCC. He stated that the Board’s
recommendations would be sent to the BCC for their consideration at a scheduled public
hearing and that the cases presented today were scheduled for the March 24, 2020 BCC
meeting at 9:00 a.m.




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 2 of 22

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Agenda Update

Consideration of Minutes: February 5, 2020

Public Comment

CONSENT AGENDA

TAB NO: CASE NO:
Tab 1 CUP-19-14-1
Tab 2 RZ-19-30-4
Tab 3 RZ-19-31-2
Tab 4 RZ-19-20-3
Tab 5 CUP-19-16-1
REGULAR AGENDA

TAB NO: CASE NO:
Tab 6 RZ-19-29-5
Other Business

Adjournment

AGENDA UPDATES

OWNER/APPLICANT/PROJECT

Gulfstream Towers FL-187 SR 33, CR 561
Ccup

Sutherlin Property Rezoning
Beebe Property Rezoning
Molokai Co-Op MHP Rezoning

SaveaFox Sanctuary CUP

OWNER/APPLICANT/PROJECT

Create Conservatory/Sawyer Rezoning

Mr. Steve Greene, Chief Planner, Office of Planning and Zoning said that there were no

changes to the agenda at this time.

Mr. Sandy Gamble indicated that he had received comment cards for Tabs 4 and 3; therefore

they would be pulled to the regular agenda.

Ms. Laura Jones Smith asked to pull Tab 3 to the regular agenda.

2




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020

Page 3 of 22

MINUTES

MOTION by Tim Morris, SECONDED by Jim Hamilton to APPROVE the Minutes of
February 5, 2020 of the Lake County Planning and Zoning Board meeting, as submitted.

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd -and Hamilton
AGAINST: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

PUBLIC COMMENT

No one wished to address the Board at this time.

CONSENT AGENDA

TAB NO: CASE NO: OWNER/APPLICANT/PROJECT

Tab 1 CUP-19-14-1 Gulfstream Towers FL-187 SR 33, CR 561
cup

Tab 2 RZ-19-30-4 Sutherlin Property Rezoning

MOTION by Tim Morris, SECONDED by Rick Gonzalez to APPROVE the Consent
Agenda, Tabs 1 and 2, as presented, pulling Tabs 3, 4 and 5 to the Regular Agenda.
FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton
AGAINST: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

REGULAR AGENDA

Tab 3 — BEEBE PROPERTY REZONING

Mzt. Greene stated that the cases had been advertised in accordance with the law.
Ms. Emily Johnson, Planner, Office of Planning and Zoning, presented Tab 3. She explained

that the property was located north of Hunt Trace Boulevard and south of Jacks Lake in the
City of Clermont area. She said that the property was about seven net acres in size, or 7.75

3




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 4 022

acres with wetlands, and the applicant was requesting to rezone approximately 7.75 acres
from Agriculture to Planned Unit Development (PUD) for an age-restricted multifamily
housing development to include a waiver request for the PUD acreage requirement. She
displayed the zoning and future land use (FLU) maps for the property, along with the concept
plan. She then relayed these staff analysis findings: the application included a request to the
BCC to consider a waiver to the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), Section 4.03.03
which stated that a PUD must contain a minimum of 10 acres; the rezoning application was
consistent with the purpose and intent of the PUD zoning district allowed by LDRs Section
4.03.00, with the exception of the aforementioned 10 acre minimum requirement; the request
was consistent with Comp Plan Policy 1-1.3.3, Urban Medium Density Future Land Use
Category, which allowed a maximum density of seven dwelling units per one net buildable
acre; and the request was consistent with Comp Plan Policy I-7.8.1, Requirements for Planned
Unit Developments, which stated that density shall not exceed the underlying FLU category
and that a PUD shall be accompanied by a conceptual plan. She concluded that staff had
found the application to be consistent with the LDRs and the Comp Plan.

Ms. Jones Smith pointed out that this request was in the City of Clermont joint planning area
(JPA) and she relayed her understanding that the City had not prov1ded any information
indicating that they would provide central water and sewer.

Ms. Johnson clarified that the City was contacted but that they had no comments. She added
that the area’s central water and sewer was served by the City of Clermont and that the
surrounding properties were annexed by the City.

Ms. Jones Smith asked why the Planning and Zoning Board would be providing them a waiver

to build a PUD on a property that had less acreage than required when the property would be

receiving services from the City of Clermont and ultimately would annex for sewer and water

service. She wondered why the applicant was not approaching the City of Clermont to build
this project.

Mr. Steve Smith, representing the applicant, explained that the City currently had a
moratorium and was not approving any permits to build multifamily housing.

Ms. Jones Smith asked why this had occurred.

Mr. Smith said that the City was trying to rewrite their statutes to ensure that the luxury
apartments being built in the community included affordable housing units. He noted that the
proposed development would be for low income seniors.

Ms. Jones Smith asked if the moratorium was exclusive to development permits.

Mr. Smith stated that it was for development and construction permits.

Ms. Jones Smith inquired to confirm that the City would not consider their annexation, and
Mr. Smith indicated that this was correct at this time but that the City agreed to provide water

4




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 5 of 22

and sewer. Ms. Jones Smith then asked when this moratorium took effect.

Mr. Smith replied that it took effect in October 2019. He felt that there was a significant need
for workforce housing and senior housing, and said that the State was providing money for
communities that recognized the need to build apartments for people in a lower income
bracket.

Ms. Kathryn McKeeby asked to confirm that this was affordable housing.

Mr. Smith confirmed this and stated that it was for 60 percent of the equated monthly income
(EMI), and the EMI in Lake County was currently about $53,000. He elaborated that
individuals making less than $30,000 would be qualified to live in this development. He also
said that the age limit was 60 and higher.

Ms. Jones Smith observed that the concept plan was referred to as phase two.

Mr. Smith explained that they were also developing the adjacent property for seniors and that
it was currently under construction; furthermore, he felt that the subject development would
blend in with the community next door.

Ms. Jones Smith asked to confirm that the City would still not consider this application even
though they were also developing on the adjacent site.

Mr. Smith confirmed this and commented that the Clermont City Attorney had indicated that
they could not waive the moratorium. He relayed his understanding that the project met all
of the zoning requirements and opined that there was nothing unusual about it.

Ms. McKeeby expressed a concern for the waiver request. She also questioned how many
units and acres they had on the adjacent property.

Mr. Smith opined that the property fit in with the community and noted that there would be
seniors next door. He said that for the adjacent development, there were six acres with 72
units due to the city’s zoning allowing 12 units per acre.

Mr. Tim Morris asked if the residents had access to a nearby lake.

Mr. Smith confirmed this. He thought that the greater good had to be considered with regards
to the waiver, and he felt that there was a significant need for housing for low income families.
He reiterated that the State had funding for communities that recognized this need and were
willing to approve developments to address it. He asked the Board to recognize this need and
reiterated that the development would fit in the community. He mentioned that there were
over 500 seniors in the City of Clermont at poverty level wages, and he remarked that the
conversation about building housing for seniors was brought about by the community need.

Mr. Rick Gonzalez commented that he was the Board’s representative on the Lake County

5




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 6 of 22

Affordable Housing Advisory Committee (AHAC), and he said that this request fit with what
that committee was trying to promote.

Mr. Gamble clarified with Mr. Smith that the age limit for the development would be 55 and
higher, rather than the previously stated age of 60 and higher. '

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment.

There being no one who wished to address the Board, the Chairman brought it back to the
Board for discussion.

Ms. Jones Smith expressed a concern that the County zoning was being used as a workaround
to avoid the City of Clermont’s moratorium; additionally, the Board would also have to grant
a waiver for it to comply. She said that she understood the need for affordable housing but
commented that the City was having issues with multifamily housing and how they wanted
to accommodate affordable housing. She expressed reluctance to waive a standard that was
in place for county projects while everything around the subject development was being built
to the city standard.

MOTION by Rick Gonzalez, SECONDED by Jim Hamilton to APPROVE Tab 3, Beebe
Property Rezoning.

FOR: Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton
AGAINST: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith and Morris

MOTION DENIED: 4-3

Tab 4 — MOLOKAI CO-OP MHP REZONING

Mr. Tim McClendon, Director, Office of Planning & Zoning, presented Tab 4. He said that
the property was located on the west side of County Road (CR) 437, about a mile north of
U.S. Highway 441, within Commission District 3. He added that the tract size was about 3.6
acres, and the request was to replace an existing ordinance with a new ordinance to rezone the
property from Mixed Home Residential (RM) to PUD; additionally, there was a request for a
waiver from the PUD acreage. He commented that staff had handed out a revised ordinance
with additional conditions as requested by the applicant. He displayed the zoning and FLU
maps for the subject property, noting that the FLU was identified as Urban Medium. He
relayed the following staff analysis findings: this request was a result of code enforcement
action around 2008 for several unapproved uses on the property including the use of solid
waste collection dumpsters, recreational vehicle (RV)/boat storage and overflow parking,
which were ancillary to the existing Molokai mobile home park; the original rezoning request
was heard by this Board in October 2019 and that at that time, the request was to rezone the
property from RM to Mobile Home Rental Park (RMRP); prior to the October 2019 BCC

6




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting

March 4, 2020

Page 7 of 22

meeting and following a unanimous approval from this Board, the applicant met with an
adjacent property owner to discuss issues that were occurring on the site; the applicant then
crafted some conditions to satisty some of the issues identified by the adjacent property
owner, though those conditions could not be codified within the RMRP zoning district; the
only way to insert those conditions in this rezoning ordinance would be through the PUD
process due to the State of Florida disallowing municipalities and counties from conditioning
conventional zoning districts; and there was a waiver with this request. He said that staff had
looked at where the 10 acre requirement for PUDs originated from and found that it was
unclear why this requirement was chosen when the original PUD ordinance was adopted. He
indicated that the Board may see a revised LDR to address the 10 acre minimum in the next
few months and that staff was looking to abandon it due to a lack of justification for the
requirement. He remarked that the revised ordinance included the modification for up to 60
boats, RVs or “toys,” defined as jet skis, four wheelers, and similar types of incidental uses.
He added that there could be up to 12 dumpsters, a utilization of an existing mobile home for
storage, and the applicant would be paving Paradise Lane to be a minimum of 15 feet wide to
a maximum of 20 feet wide. He remarked that this request was identical to the request
approved in October 2019, with the only difference being the addition of certain conditions
to help offset some issues that were discussed between the applicant and the adjacent property
owner. He said that staff requested that the Board recommend approval of this request to
rezone about 3.6 acres from RM to PUD to accommodate the accessory uses occurring on the
site.

Mr. Gamble asked about the normal requirement for a PUD buffer.

Mr. McClendon responded that it would be a type B buffer which would include a buffer of
up to 15 or 20 feet wide with two or three canopy trees within that landscape buffer per 100
feet.

Mr. Gamble relayed his understanding that there were some trees there currently.

Mr. McClendon commented that if this was approved, the applicant would be required to file
a site plan where the County could identify the buffers; furthermore, the applicant could obtain
credit for some of those trees within the existing buffer. He added that they would be required
to plant extra material if they did not meet the minimum requirement.

Mr. Gamble indicated a concern for visibility for the residents northwest of the subject
property, though he noted that the mobile home would be used for storage only. He also noted
that a residence used the road there, and he asked if anything would be done that would
prevent the resident from getting to their home.

Mr. McClendon confirmed that the mobile home would not be allowed to be occupied. He
also clarified that the resident would not be prevented from getting to their home; furthermore,
the applicant proposed a condition to prohibit blocking or parking within that easement.

Mr. Gamble noted that the boat storage was increased from 36 to 60 boats, and Mr.

7




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 8 0of 22

McClendon deferred this to the applicant. Mr. Gamble also noticed that there could be a 15
foot wide paved road, and Mr. McClendon said that it would be 20 feet where available. Mr.
Gamble thought that the width should be 20 feet.

Mr. Morris asked why there were dumpsters there, and Mr. McClendon deferred this to the
applicant. :

Ms. Jones Smith indicated an understanding that the property was owned by the Molokai Co-
Op, which she thought was comprised of the owners of the lots who individually made up that
co-op. She said that an RV, trailer or recreational toy could be parked on a property within
the RM zoning district as long as it was on the property that the individual owned; therefore,
she asked that if the co-op represented all owners within, would the property being zoned RM
not already accommodate them parking there since they individually all owned a percent
interest in that property.

Ms. Melanie Marsh, County Attorney, thought that the documents creating this could have
been in place before the zoning code due to it being an older subdivision. She did not believe
that the subject property was zoned RMRP.

Ms. Jones Smith questioned that if the subject property was owned by the co-op, which was
comprised of the owners in that community, would they all own a percent interest in the
property that they were trying to rezone to PUD. She indicated a concern that if this was
accurate, then they would have ownership over the property and could park their equipment
there because the RM zoning indicated that they could park these items in an RM zoned lot
as long as it was owned by the person who was parking their item there. She wondered why
this was being rezoned to PUD aside from the dumpsters.

Ms. Marsh deferred this to the applicant. She explained that the request to rezone it to PUD
was because the property owners behind it who were not part of the co-op had conditions that
they wanted imposed, which could not be done in the RMRP district because it was a straight
zoning, She elaborated that they switched to a PUD to accommodate the requests of those
property owners outside of the mobile home park.

Ms. Jones Smith indicated an understanding that the co-op was subject to a code violation
because they were using the property for outdoor storage, and she asked if this was accurate.

Mr. McClendon believed that this was the code enforcement action in 2008.

Ms. Jones Smith asked how a resident who was part of the co-op could be in violation for
parking their vehicle there.

Ms. Marsh said that it still had to meet the zoning code, and that property was not zoned to
have the use for storing vehicles there regardless of who owned it.

Mr. McClendon clarified that RM zoning would allow up to a single RV, vessel, or boat, and

8




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 9 of 22

that any subsequent vehicle would need to be screened from the right of way of any easements
or roads. He stated that the way to alleviate any grey areas was going through this process.

Ms. Marsh recalled that when the co-op was cited in 2008, they were not the only mobile
home park that was cited for this. She said that the reason that the code case was never
pursued at the time was because the Lake County Office of Planning and Zoning was going
to correct the LDRs to address this issue for these types of parks; however, this did not occur
and the County began receiving complaints again about this property.

Ms. Jones Smith asked when this subdivision was platted.

Ms. Marsh did not know if co-ops were necessarily platted and thought that the applicant
could answer this.

Mr. McClendon reiterated that from the staff’s standpoint, this request was identical to the
request that was before the BCC in October 2019 and the only difference was that conditions
were inserted to alleviate issués with adjacent property owners.

Mr. Jimmy Crawford, an attorney representing the applicant, said that if the issue went to
code enforcement, then they would argue that RM zoning allowed the storage and that by
everyone in the mobile home park having an interest in that property, they would be able to
store that many units. He felt that arguing legal issues before code enforcement could be
challenging and he expressed an interest in addressing the item through rezoning. He said
that staff had indicated that the property needed to be rezoned to RMRP and that this had been
applied for; however, the adjacent property owners had concerns. He noted that he had met
with them to address conditions and that they wanted to offer conditions to attempt to protect
the neighbors; furthermore, the only way to do this was with a PUD. He thought that the
mobile home park began in 1971 or 1972 and that it operated as a developer owned park until
the mid-1990s when the developers sold it to the owners, after which it was cooperatively
owned.

Mr. Gamble asked if each resident there had a share in the co-op.

Mr. Crawford confirmed this for any common area and said that they each had a share in the
co-op corporation. He elaborated that all of the land was owned by the co-op and that the
individual lot owners had a 99 year use right that was recorded in the public records;
furthermore, when they bought and sold, this included their share and use right. He said that
a condition which they had agreed to include in the PUD was a restriction to toy storage and
dumpsters. He also noted that the adjacent property owners have had access issues.

Mr. Gonzalez asked if this was the only access to the neighbor’s property, and Mr. Crawford
confirmed this. Mr. Gonzalez then asked who was there first.

Mr. Crawford stated that the park was there first and that the subject property was purchased
in the late 1990s, which began to be used for storage in 2005. He clarified that the maximum

9




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 10 of 22

number of allowed units there had always been 60 and that spaces had been marked. He
commented that there would be “no blocking” signage for Paradise Lane, and he displayed an
image similar to a concept plan which could be attached to the PUD. He noted that it showed
Paradise Lane, the 20 foot easement, and the nine to ten foot wide roadway there currently.
He recalled that the property did not have any paved access when it was bought but that it was
paved after 2005 to the nine or ten feet. He pointed out an existing home and driveway which
encroached into the easement, with the road being built around them. He remarked that they
were trying to work around this and that the part of the road that could only be paved to 15
feet wide was in that area, with the rest of the road being able to be paved to about 20 feet
wide. He commented that paving it exactly 20 feet wide would create drainage issues and
said that about 18 feet was the maximum width in most places where a one foot swale could
be placed on both sides.

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if the residents on Paradise Lane were part of the co-op, and Mr.
Crawford confirmed this. Mr. Gonzalez then asked if the co-op purchased this property to
park items on.

Mr, Crawford relayed his understanding that it was bought for protection purposes and that
the co-op was worried that it would get sold for a residence. He commented that the co-op
started storing trailers there about five or six years after they bought it. He was unsure if the
neighbor’s home was built before the co-op was there, and he noted that the mobile home
park was there but that the property was not being used for storage when the house was built.
He suggested a new condition indicating that trailers or vehicles parked on the property must
be operable and have a valid current tag due to a concern was that it could become a junkyard.
He showed an image of the property, noting the location of parking spaces and that most of
the property was open. He did not think that the neighbors could see the trailers from their
driveway but that they may be able to see them from another angle. He showed an aerial
picture of the site from 2006 and said that the storage was there but was not spread out as far.
He then showed a picture from 2009 with the trailer and storage. He commented that it had
been used in this way for about 11 years, and he remarked that the concept drawing would
limit the parking area to the labeled areas; furthermore, it would be disallowed in the middle
of the property or around the edge toward the neighbor’s property. He displayed images of
the property from 2014 and 2017, pointing out that there could be up to 60 units stored there
in the winter but that it could be less than 30 in the summer. He commented that they would
go through the site plan process for the landscape buffer and thought that there would have to
be additional plantings there.

Mr. Gamble asked who maintained the trees along the driveway to the adjacent property
owner’s home.

Mr. Crawford believed that the co-op maintained them. He then showed an image of the
dumpsters and said that they were smaller rolling dumpsters. He explained that the trash had
always been picked up there by being gathered by an employee, taken to the subject property,
and then picked up by a commercial dumpster pickup service. He said that this was done
because the roads had substandard paving and width within the park which did not

10




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 11 of 22

accommodate a garbage truck. He remarked that the dumpsters used to be kept elsewhere
within the park but thought that the County had asked for them to be moved for security
purposes or another reason. He commented that they could provide screening for the
dumpsters if necessary.

Ms. Jones Smith relayed her understanding that the County could not provide curbside trash
pickup for individual owners because the roads were substandard, but asked if the trucks could
go down a narrow dirt road to empty the dumpsters. She also asked if the road was paved
now.

Mr. Crawford clarified that this road was paved now, and that it was straight and between
nine and ten feet wide. :

Ms. Jones Smith questioned why the dumpsters needed to be there.

Mr. Oscar Noel, President of the Molokai mobile home park, said that there were a few dead
end roads and that a garbage truck would have to back in. He recalled that it was decided to
obtain the small dumpsters and use them for pickup. He relayed a brief history of garbage
pickup at the site, and he that noted that tops had been installed on the dumpsters due to bears
along with them being kept in good repair.

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment.

Ms. Christi LaFond, a neighbor of the subject property, said that she had been there for 21
years. She opined that the usage of the property in this manner had been a nuisance and a
code violation, and said that the road was only nine feet wide. She expressed concerns for
having to share this road with numerous residents, and claimed that the residents came there
to park their property and that they blocked the road. She relayed her understanding that the
Lake County Sheriff’s Office (LCSO) had been there multiple times and had indicated that
they would fine the person blocking the road and the park for having the road blocked. She
did not think that the road was large enough for this many people, and she mentioned that
Cook Lake was a nationally registered wetland where class A RVs and untagged vehicles
were being stored. She questioned if the vehicles would be abandoned there and expressed
concerns for seeing dumpsters when driving to her home; furthermore, she was worried about
how this could affect her property value. She recounted a brief history of her property and
opined that the applicant’s solution was to move her utilities in order to make the road 20 feet
wide to avoid disturbing a resident who was encroaching on the right of way. She also
indicated concerns for leaching and contamination regarding the wetlands there.

Mr. Mark LaFond, a neighbor of the subject property, noted that if there was a 50 foot setback
around the subject property, there would be about 0.63 acres in the middle and felt that not
enough vehicles and dumpsters could be stored there. He was amicable with having one RV
stored there but did not want to see possibly 300 class A RVs on the lot. He felt that more
items had been stored there over time and indicated a concern for wind blowing debris.

11




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 12 of 22

There being no one else who wished to address the Board, the Chairman brought it back to
the Board for discussion. ’

Mr. Crawford recalled that the property was cited by the County and that a rezoning was
applied for at that point, though the County had placed the rezoning on hold to address it. He
said that there had been no code enforcement or zoning for the next 10 years, and they applied
for arezoning to address the violation which came up again. He felt that many of the LaFonds’
issues were addressed by adopting a PUD with the included rules and restrictions. He
explained that there could not be any abandoned trailers there, that there could be trash pickup,
that the property was already being used for storage in 2006 or 2007, that the site would be
capped at the current use, and that the dumpsters now had tops to prevent windblown debris.

Mr. Gonzalez asked if the dumpsters were there in 1999, and Mr., Crawford indicated that
they were placed there after 2001.

Mr. Noel noted that the concept plan showed a setback of 50 feet from the bank of the
wetlands, and he said that if the ability to park there was lost, there would be more vehicles
closer to the LaFonds. He said that the roadway was paved at nine to ten feet but that there
was also dirt on the sides so that there was more width. He mentioned that the majority of the
trailers on the site were small utility or enclosed trailers rather than RVs; furthermore, he’
thought that there were less than 10 RVs. He commented that some people may go back there
to empty trash into a dumpster and that most of the vehicles parked there did not move often.
He noted that the dumpsters were visible but felt that they had to be placed somewhere.

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if there was an abandoned class A vehicle there.
Mr. Noel denied this and relayed that they had someone who enforced this; furthermore, each
vehicle parked on the site had to have a sticker from the park. He said that a class A vehicle

may have been there but that he thought it was registered.

Mr. Gonzalez asked if this vehicle would be moved if this request was approved, and Mr.
Noel said that it would be moved if it was not registered and operational.

Mr. Jim Hamilton asked.to clarify if there would be fencing around the dumpsters to block
them from sight.

Mr. Crawford indicated that staff had told them that under the RMRP zoning, they would have
to fence or enclose the dumpster area on three sides. He said that this was a site plan issue

but that the Board could require this in the PUD. He stated that they would be willing to
enclose and landscape the dumpster area.

Ms. Jones Smith recalled that this request required a waiver for the code requirement stating
that a PUD must be at least 10 acres.

Mr. Gonzalez indicated that staff had explained that there was no basis for this requirement.

12




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 13 0f 22

Ms. Jones Smith stated that staff had not presented a final finding to the Board nor had they
submitted a recommended ordinance.

Mr. McClendon said that when staff researched the issue, they pulled the first ordinance for
the PUD zoning district that was placed in the LDRs; furthermore, they were unable to identify
where the 10 acre requirement originated from. He said that for the flexibility of Lake County
citizens, the Board would possibly see a revised LDR ordinance where staff would
recommend to remove the 10 acre requirement.

Mr. Gonzalez asked to confirm that there were numerous trailer parks in the county that were
under 10 acres in size, and Mr. McClendon said that this was correct.

Ms. Jones Smith clarified that the applicant was not requesting to rezone the mobile home
park; rather they were rezoning the empty lot.

Ms. McKeeby noted that the dumpster had to be placed somewhere and that the garbage trucks
could not travel down the roads in the park.

Ms. Jones Smith relayed her understanding that this was not the only public space in that
community.

Mr. Gamble noted that another comment card had been received for this item, so he allowed
that citizen to speak.

Ms. Linda Stowell, a resident of Lake County, indicated her understanding that the dumpsters
were moved to the subject property because bears were getting into them. She said that there
were 272 shares in the co-op and that 272 residents owned a portion of that property;
furthermore, she thought that they could each park one extra vehicle on that property. She
noted that the applicant was agreeing to a buffer and fencing in the dumpsters, and she
expressed a concern for limiting it to 60 spaces due to there being 272 shares in the co-op.
She did not think that one property should outweigh 272 other properties.

MOTION by Rick Gonzalez, SECONDED by Kathryn McKeeby to APPROVE Tab 4,
Molokai Co-Op MHP Rezoning, with the modification to require stored vehicles to be
operable and tagged.

FOR: McKeeby, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton

AGAINST: Gamble, Jones Smith, Morris

MOTION CARRIED: 4-3

13




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 14 of 22

Tab 5 — SAVEAFOX SANCTUARY CUP

Ms. Johnson presented Tab 5. She explained that the property was located at 19231 CR 33,
in the City of Groveland area, and was identified by alternate key number 3438094. She said
that the property was approximately 9.65 acres, and the applicant was requesting a conditional
use permit (CUP) to allow an exotic animal sanctuary on Agtriculture zoned property. She
displayed the zoning and FLU maps for the property, noting that the current FLU was Rural.
She displayed the concept plan, and she relayed these staff analysis findings: the subject 9.65
acre property was zoned Agriculture; the conditional use request was consistent with LDRs
Table 3.01.03, Schedule of Permitted and Conditional Uses, which allowed exotic animals
within the Agriculture zoning district with an appropriate land use regulatory instrument, with
a CUP satisfying this requirement; and the conditional use request was consistent with Comp
Plan Policy I-1.4.4, Rural Future Land Use Category, which stated that animal specialty
services were allowed within the FLU category with an appropriate land use regulatory
instrument.

Mr. Gamble asked if public comments could be considered now.

Ms. Johnson confirmed this and noted that the applicant was unable to attend today but that
there were some members from the Save a Fox corporation in attendance. '

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment.

Ms. Alda Bradnick, a neighbor of the subject property, said that she walked in the area and
that she disapproved of having animals next door. .

Ms. Christina Shrout, a neighbor of the subject property, said that she did not want the animals
there and thought that the scent could draw wild animals to the area. She claimed that the
neighborhood had a petition indicating that the facility was not wanted there. She also
suggested that it would create traffic and noise.

Ms. Kellie Kruse, a resident of Ramsey County in the State of Minnesota and representing
Save a Fox, relayed her understanding that the scent of these animals was more likely to keep
away other predatory animals. She clarified that they were not looking to intrude on the
neighbors’ properties and said that they wanted to rescue these animals. She opined that the
animals did not make a significant amount of noise, and stated that they kept the property
clean and cared for the animals. She clarified that tours were on a scheduled basis, and she
thought that the rescue could work with the neighbors to update them on what was occurring.
She did not feel that there had been issues in the State of Minnesota and that they had been
successful there.

Mr. Stephen Brauer, a neighbor of the subject property, expressed concerns for the facility
being nonprofit and for delivery services damaging his driveway that he maintained. He
alleged that the applicant’s facility in the State of Minnesota had been shut down because their
capacity of foxes was exceeded. He questioned where an RV could be parked when there

14




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 15 0f 22

would only be six parking spaces. He expressed concerns for numerous people visiting the
site and also for other animal sanctuaries in the area. He submitted a petition against the
request, and he thought that there was land for sale elsewhere that could be utilized.

" Ms. Meghan Hines, from Stearns County in the State of Minnesota and representing Save a
Fox, displayed images from activities at the Save a Fox rescue in the State of Minnesota. She
clarified that the traffic would not be comparable to a zoo nor would they have tours on most
days; additionally, their tour capacity was three or less people three or four times a week. She
added that tours required an appointment and that they intended to have a similar operation to
that which was in the State of Minnesota. She said that they intended to operate quietly and
that they did not receive packages at their location in the State of Minnesota.

Mr. Gonzalez asked Ms. Hines to explain her position in this organization, if it was a
nationwide organization, and if they owned the property.

Ms. Hines stated that she was the development director for Save a Fox and that she sat on the
board of directors; furthermore, she commented that the organization was only in the State of
Minnesota. She said they did not own the property and relayed that the individual who was
supposed to present the case today had experienced a medical issue on the previous day.

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if they would want to suspend this case until another time, and Ms.
Hines thought they could address any concerns.

Ms. Jones Smith asked how many Save a Fox rescue locations they had in the country, and
Ms. Hines indicated that they had one location in the State of Minnesota. Ms. Jones Smith
then asked to confirm whether they were looking to purchase the subject property to open a
second location or to move their current location.

Ms. Hines clarified that they were looking to open a second location due to a need to expand.
She relayed that their current city and county in the State of Minnesota had refused to let them
take more animals. She also explained that the majority of their rescue animals were captive
born, captive bred foxes.

Mr. Gonzalez inquired why they chose the subject property.

+ Ms. Jones Smith inquired who would be running this operation and if individuals would be
living on the site.

Ms. Hines responded that it was one of the only sites with sufficient land capacity and the
Agriculture zoning. She also said that there would be at least two live-in staff and that one of
them would be relocating there from the State of Minnesota.

Mr. Gonzalez asked about the qualifications of the people who ran this organization.

Ms. Hines explained that their founder had been working with foxes for 10 years and that she

15




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 16 of 22

was the main handler of the animals. She elaborated that other individuals had trained under
her.

Mr. Gonzalez then asked if this individual had any formal training.

Ms. Hines said that they had some schooling but that they did not complete their veterinarian
studies degree.

Ms. McKeeby inquired if they were involved in rehabilitation, and Ms. Hines denied this.

Mr. Gonzalez asked if there was a veterinarian associated with the organization, and Ms.
Hines confirmed that they had a veterinarian who saw all of their animals in the State of
Minnesota; additionally, a veterinarian had also been found in the State of Florida.

Ms. McKeeby asked how many foxes they had at their facility in the City of Minnesota, and
Ms. Hines said that they had 20 adult foxes there and wanted 40 foxes in Lake County.

Mr. Gonzalez questioned how they were funded, and Ms. Hines explained that they were
funded through donations primarily from their social media following of over 500,000 people.
She opined that they were well funded and had a steady flow of monthly income. Mr.
Gonzalez then asked if they took in captive bred foxes to live there.

Ms. Hines commented that they obtained them from fur farms when they were sick and that
they would typically be euthanized; however, her organization was able to obtain them and
move them to their property. She clarified that these were not foxes that were found outdoors.

Ms. McKeeby asked to clarify that the foxes were raised in fur farms to be killed for their fur.

Ms. Hines said this was correct. She related that if the pups were sick or if the mother was
unable to care for them, this could be a liability for the farm.

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if foxes came there from throughout the country and if they would
bringing foxes from the State of Minnesota to the State of Florida.

Ms. Hines noted that there were farms all over the country but that the farms they worked
with were mostly local to the State of Minnesota. She denied that they would be bringing
foxes to the State of Florida from the State of Minnesota. She stated that some individuals
had expressed interest in surrendering their captive born foxes to her organization and that
this was another reason why they needed a new location. She commented that when the
animals could not be taken in, their owners could hide them or free them into the community.

Mr. Gamble did not think that the driveway was maintained by the County, and he asked what
they would do to maintain it.

Ms. Hines indicated that they had plans and funding to build their own driveway and that they

16




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 17 0f 22

did not anticipate a high volume of traffic.

Ms. Jones Smith mentioned that based on an aerial picture, there was a curb cut on CR 33 and
an apron coming in, then the driveway went a short distance before it split into two driveways;
furthermore, it would curve into the subject property. She wondered how the easement
worked for these driveways.

Ms. Johnson said that for the current driveway access which connected to CR 33, staff’s
understanding was that it was an easement that had an apron through another resident’s
property. She indicated that in a meeting with the applicant, staff explained that it was likely
that they would have to obtain their own access; furthermore, access improvements would be
addressed during the site plan phase.

Ms. Jones Smith inquired if they would have to make their own curb cut onto CR 33 and if -
they would be unable to use the neighbor’s driveway.

Mr. Seth Lynch, with the Lake County Public Works Department, said that he was unaware
of a meeting or a discussion about access that would be different from what was currently
there.

Ms. Jones Smith asked if it would be reasonable to assume that he would not want more curb
cuts on CR 33, and Mr. Lynch responded that they would have to evaluate it and that it was
County maintained.

There being no one else who wished to address the Board, the Chairman brought it back to
the Board for discussion.

Mr. Morris thought that the Board needed to postpone the case to let staff meet and learn the
facts. He asked if the case could be postponed for 60 days.

Mr. Gamble indicated that this time could also be used to address issues with nearby residents.
Ms. Marsh indicated that the Board could postpone it however long they wanted; however,
she suggested specifying the Board’s April or May 2020 meeting because it may not fall
within exactly 60 days.

Mr. Morris asked if the applicant would be amicable with this.

Ms. Hines said that she was personally amicable to this but felt that it was a timely situation
with building.

Mr. Gonzalez suggested postponing the case to the May 2020 meeting. He said that the Save

a Fox owner could come back to represent their operation and that they could also consider
alternative sites.

17




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 18 of 22

Ms. Jones Smith wondered if one month would be enough time for the applicant to meet with
the neighbors and the County.

Mr. Greene was unsure if 30 days would be sufficient to meet with the neighbors and staff
with regard to the driveway access issue. He recommended to postpone the case either 60 or
90 days due to uncertainty about the wellbeing of the primary applicant. He also thought that
90 days would be enough time to meet with the adjacent property owners.

MOTION by Tim Morris, SECONDED by Kathryn McKeeby to POSTPONE Tab 5,
SaveaFox Sanctuary CUP, to the June 2020 Planning and Zoning Board meeting.

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton
AGAINST: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

Tab 6 — CREATE CONSERVATORY/SAWYER REZONING

Mr. Greene presented Tab 6. He said that this rezoning was for a 3.1 acre property from Rural
Residential (R-1) to Community Facility District (CFD) to accommodate an educational
facility and also to request a setback waiver to the front setback requirement. He explained
that the property was surrounded on all four sides by the Rural FLU and R-1 zoning, and that
the Rural FLU allowed institutional facilities such as schools; however, R-1 zoning did not
allow this and this was why the request was for CFD zoning. He indicated that the property
was intended to have a K-5 school specializing in science, technology, engineering and
mathematics (STEM) education with a maximum of 80 students and seven staffers. He stated
that the property was within the Emeralda Marsh area along Bertsville Road. He displayed a
concept plan, and relayed that staff had indicated that the Rural FLU allowed educational
facilities; however, the proposed use with regards to land use compatibility with the
surrounding rural nature of the property was inconsistent and incompatible. He mentioned
that the property would be required to have central water and sewer, though the Town of Lake
Lady had indicated that those services were unavailable. He said that currently, the property
functioned as a residential property and they would have to accommodate their own well and
septic tank onsite. He related that currently, the well serving this property was across the
street and served three different properties; furthermore, if the project was approved, it would
have a level of impact and intensive uses that would be incompatible with the surrounding
rural community. He commented that the LDRs required a noise study and that staff opined
that the school would have noise levels that exceed the existing noise in the area. He
concluded that staff found the request to be incompatible with adjacent land uses and the
existing rural nature of the adjacent R-1 zoning districts.

Mr. Hamilton asked if the applicant would be using Crown Place to access the site and if the
site already had a home on it.

18




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 19 of 22

Mr. Greene displayed a map of the area and clarified that the access would come from
Bertsville Road and then to Crown Place. He also confirmed that there was already a home
there which would be converted into a school.

Ms. Jones Smith inquired if there were pump houses across the road from the site.
Mr. Greene thought that they were residences but said that they could be pump houses.

Mr. Gamble said that the Board had received a letter indicating that there were now four
homes in that area.

Ms. Nikki Duslak, Founder and Head of School for CREATE Conservatory and representing
the applicant, opined that the public school system in the area was inadequate for gifted
students. She said that the options for gifted learners in North Lake currently was to attend
Beverly Shores Elementary School one day per week. She relayed her understanding that
Beverly Shores Elementary School was an “F” rated school and felt that the county would not
attract top talent in certain fields because there were no top schools for their children. She
relayed that 25 letters of support had been submitted to the Board and that there were an
additional 30 names currently on her school’s enrollment list. She commented that the other
locations they investigated were not ideal and that they chose this house in the Town of Lady
Lake because it was a tranquil environment. She felt that the property provided ideal safety
and access, and she clarified that CREATE Conservatory was a nonprofit K-5 school that
taught STEM education through arts integration. She commented that they would consider
community concerns as they developed their plans, and she relayed these items to address
traffic concerns: incentives for carpooling; staggered start and end times; and beforecare and
aftercare options. She concluded that they did not intend to have 80 vehicles coming and
going each day.

Mr. Gonzalez asked if she owned this property, and Ms. Duslak replied that they were
currently in a due diligence period.

Mr. Gamble asked to confirm how many students they were considering, and Ms. Duslak said
that they would have a maximum capacity of 80 students. Mr. Gamble also felt that there had
been a significant turnaround at Beverly Shores Elementary School. He indicated that his
concern was for the road, and he asked if it was concrete.

Ms. Duslak relayed her understanding that this was correct.

Mr. Gamble thought that there could still be at least 40 to 50 cars per day, and he questioned
how wide the road was and if it was a county road.

Mr. Lynch explained that the road was concrete, 20 feet wide, and not maintained by the
County; however, Bertsville Road was maintained by Lake County and was recently repaved,
and Griffin View Drive was also maintained by the County. He said that these roads were
used to get to the road at the subject property and that the road there was drivable.

19




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 20 of 22

Ms. Jones Smith inquired how that road was maintained.

Ms. Duslak thought that three other homes on that road currently shared in its maintenance.
She suggested having it in ertlng that the school would be responsible for the significant
majority of maintaining that road.

Mr. Gamble asked how the children would be fed.

Ms. Duslak commented that students would have to bring their lunch and that there would be
no deliveries; however, a garbage truck would travel there.

Mr. Gonzalez inquired if they would have a commercial kitchen, and Ms. Duslak said that
there was no food service. Mr. Gonzalez then asked why this site was chosen when it did not
have the proper zoning or adequate access. He felt that it was the incorrect site.

Ms. Duslak did not believe that the access was inadequate and said that the majority of
commercial zonings in this area were in areas with high traffic, noise and density. She
expressed that they did not necessary want children in those places and that they had looked
at over 50 properties, with the subject property being voted on by their board. She felt that
the house could support what they were trying to do, that the site was safe, and that it had
. space for the children to play. She believed that the property was accessible and that most
other schools functioned in higher density locations in this area with more children.

Ms. Jones Smith asked if this was the last house on the road.

Ms. Duslak confirmed this and said that the driveway was a cul-de-sac which could support
drop offs and pickups.

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment.

Ms. Kim Levine, a business owner in Lake County, felt that the benefits of arts integration
and the reduction in arts funding in the state supported the proposed school. She said that
there was potential for her company to become involved and that they supported the creative
process in learning. She added that her organization had committed to supporting the
development and the funding of the schools’ marketing efforts, along with contributing two
scholarships.

Mr. Gonzalez asked about her position with the school, and Ms. Levine replied that she was
a board member. Mr. Gonzalez then inquired if this site was focused on due to budget
restrictions, and Ms. Duslak denied this.

Mr. Mark Duslak, a resident of Lake County, spoke about Ms. Duslak’s education background
and felt that she built outstanding teams. He said that the school’s board represented members
who were the top talent in their fields and noted that the school was nonprofit. He opined that
there were not enough opportunities to meet the diverse educational needs of students in the

20




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 21 0of 22

area, and that CREATE Conservatory addressed this issue. He relayed that the neighbors and
the community would be considered, and he urged the Board to support the request.

Ms. Amber Karlins, Chair of the Board for CREATE Conservatory and a professor at Lake-
Sumter State College, said that she believed in public education but felt that the current system
was unable to adequately meet the needs of gifted, talented and creative learners. She also
opined that one day per week at Beverly Shores Elementary School was insufficient to serve
this population. She indicated that their intention was not to be in a residential area, but
thought that the subject property was correct. She stated that they would work with the
neighbors and the community to address challenges.

Mr. Dean Barber, a neighbor of the subject property, expressed concerns for the following
items: decreased property values; the type A buffer consisting of vegetation rather than a
fence; a neighbor who was worried about children coming onto their property; livestock
harming children; the roadway not constituting a school due to the traffic; having to repair the
road; and water and septic service. He said that they shared a pump house that serviced the
three homes, and he was concerned that the pipes would not withstand increasing the pump
pressure. He was also worried that the road could not accommodate the weight of a firetruck,
that there was only one way in and out, and that there would be increased lighting and noise.
He asked the Board to deny the request.

Ms. Jones Smith asked how the pump house worked.

Mr. Barber responded that one line left the pump house and went up the road to go to each
individual home. He also described it as being one main with three individual junctions and
noted that it serviced each property.

There being no one else who wished to address the Board, the Chairman brought it back to
the Board for discussion.

Ms. Duslak explained that the type A landscape buffer was included because it was what they
were advised to write by the Lake County Office of Planning and Zoning; however, they
intended to fence in the school for safety. She opined that the water consumption would be
similar to a single family residence due to the use of the water. She said that they were
investigating potentially installing a private well, and that they were working with the United
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) on a grant that would help them bring the property
up to code and ensure that it was adequately lit. She relayed that there was an empty field
behind them that they could use for children to leave the property in case of an emergency;
furthermore, they would work with local law enforcement and the community to ensure a safe
exit plan for the students there. She opined that the community benefit of the school
outweighed the concerns of an individual neighbor, and she relayed her understanding that
the majority of other schools functioned with more students in higher density areas than the
subject location.

21




Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
March 4, 2020
Page 22 of 22

Mr. Gonzalez asked about evacuating the students on private property, and Ms. Jones Smith
clarified that it would be on the subject property. Mr. Gonzalez opined that this was not the
correct location.

Ms. McKeeby recalled that the property was inconsistent with the area’s land development.

Ms. Jones Smith agreed but hoped that they could find a good location in the area to serve
this population.

Mr. Gamble indicated that there were five letters of objection. He applauded what the
applicant was doing but thought that a different location would be preferable.

MOTION by Rick Gonzalez, SECONDED by Cori Todd to DENY Tab 6, Create
Conservatory/Sawyer Rezoning.

FOR: Gamble, McKeeby, Jones Smith, Morris, Gonzalez, Todd and Hamilton
AGAINST: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Greene indicated that the next meeting would be on April 1, 2020 and woﬁld include an
election of officers.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:18 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Josh Pearson Sandy Garfible
Deputy Clerk, Board Support Chairman

22




LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: m&r K N hV‘(S‘[’! LQ,QHA — 8/4/209‘0
County of Residence: LO"KQ’

Topic: m 0 l OK&(' pf:ZD‘h(Z\)

Tab No. (if applicable)

Residents wishing to participate inthe public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’
meetings must fill out @ comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

i handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.
LA Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
CcO U NTY. FL - Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards Comment cards are considered public record and
seaL rronina - reat crose  Will be submitted as part of the meetmg manTES

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: ‘Li/"\cf’if’\. 671?/\’1/“/{/// Date: b;/L7l[F/Z~CA7

Al

County of Residence: =Y

A

Topic: //1 [o ;’i./U ////IZ' Z‘f”fﬁ' é)ﬁ ZCVL {y‘»f}

p—

Tab No. (if applicable) >

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’
k meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name.

Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
C () UNTY, FL Chairhas the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and
weaL rLorina - reac crose  Will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes.




LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: ,f}/rlm /T'Z)/‘Or-/:/g ‘/\(? ,’4/ Date: 3/# /40;2 2
2 Rl kil / /

County of Residence:

Topic:

Tab No. (if applicable) 2]

Residents wishing to participate in the bublic comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners'’

s Mmeetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing
LAK handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.

Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the:
COUN TY EL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards Comment cards are considered public record and
mear rloma - reas cuose  Will be submitted as part of the meetlng minutes.

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or sft¢ deems necessary.

First and Last Name: Wﬂ/f: “///_ Date: O3 ~( &/~ F2+

County of Residence:

Topic:

Tab No. (if applicable)

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.
LA E Generally, comment cards will not be accepted afterthe presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
COUNTY, FL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and
mear rlorina - real cuose  Will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes.




LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: ST@ PHEN %{2&\462 Dats 3/4[/ RO
County of Residence: ﬁ/c/ 317 Court¥ ED . 3 5
Topic: . SAVE A FOX

Tab No. (if applicable) 5

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners'’
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.
Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
‘'COUN DUNTY, FL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards Comment cards are considered public record and
reaL rLorina - eeat crose  Will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes.

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the

discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: ‘ﬂ//e/ \ i\L'{/ WJ% Date: N’% l{ Uggﬂ, 2‘?)@
County of Residence: \i/u‘/%wz 9 leﬁj"f
Topic: Sﬁ\/\ﬂ? QJP[;FO XA & b{/ f),

Tab No. (if applicable)

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment porti:on of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk- The Chair will call each speaker’s name.
LA E Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
COU N TY FL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and
reaL FLorioa - reat ceose  Will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes.




LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: }IVLJL&/L\ Qi Hﬁl‘u/) Date: :5%/ . f QLo

‘C@W\ﬁ Ce . *4/1 )

County of Residence:

Topic: S\WU&A*/GUY gﬁé (e C_ouP

Tab No. (if applicable)

Residents wishingto participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.
LA E Benerally, comment cards will not be accepted afterthe presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
COUNTY. 1 TY, FL  Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards Comment cards are considered public record and
seaL rLonina - reat cuose - Will be submitted as part of the meetmg mmutes -

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: _[Aim1 [evirre Date: B ‘1.{, ( 0V

County of Residence: L.A- Ke

Topic: Z‘O”""l_‘f C hange Cr pwr— Place

Tab No. (if applicable) (ﬂ

X

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’

meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing
I ARE handouts or. displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.

Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
COUN T Y. E1- . Chair has the discretiqn to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and
meaL rLomina - reat crose- - Will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes.




LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: %/Méy/ ?(ilv/ [ins Date: 2/ 4/ 25 =8

County of Residence: L3kt

Topic: ___ CREATE Copserdzfory
- N Q

Tab No. (if applicable) (ﬁ

N A - Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioneré’
" meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing
) ﬁ ¢ E handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.

Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
COUNTY, FL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and
mest riomins - resc ciosz  Will be submitted as part of the meeting minutes. :

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill cut the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the

discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

Firstand Last Name: ﬂ!«lz Dﬁ\lﬁl@"b Date: %’éé
/

County of Residence: M

Topic: Z’-’"”%{ 0}1%‘}'1"" F éﬁ“‘f%

Tab No. (if applicable) @

ﬁ Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’

meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing
handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.
Generally, comment cards will not be accepted after the presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the
COUNTY FL Chairhas the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered public record and
meat rLomina - reaL crose Wil be submitted as part of the meeting minutes.




LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: (~ ({ I/?—!?/]—L LH?/ o b 7,5/2LLQ Date: £ 5 DY/ - AX e
County of Residence: / /91/( Ll

Topic:

Tab No. (if applicable) é é’

+=

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissiohers’
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

LA E handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy. Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker's name.

Generally, comment cards will not be accepted afterthe presentatlon of an agenda item has begun; however, the
" COU DUNTY-FEL Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards Comment cards are considered public record and
REaL FLORIDA - REaL cLose Wil be subm:tted as part of the meeting mmutes

LAKE COUNTY SPEAKER REQUEST FORM

Please fill out the information below. All speakers will be limited to three minutes; however, the Chair retains the
discretion to adjust speaking time limits as he or she deems necessary.

First and Last Name: Demvs 13K RPEL Date: ;3//9///20 2

County of Residence: Lcr e

TOpiC: é)fz,cj}’l i~y IQAOPLM:O‘V\,
& [

Tab No. (if applicable) f

Residents wishing to participate in the public comment portion of Lake County Board of County Commissioners’
meetings must fill out a comment card and submit it to the Deputy Clerk at the left of the dais. Those bringing

-4 handouts or displays must also submit copies to the Deputy Clerk. The Chair will call each speaker’s name.

o LA E Generally, comment cards will not be accepted afterthe presentation of an agenda item has begun; however, the

“'CO U NTY EL  Chair has the discretion to accept additional comment cards. Comment cards are considered pubhc record and -
sear rionina-veal cose  Will be submitted as part of’(he meeting minutes. : ;




Tab &

¥,

e 4 i PROSPFCT,S T - %

"




Tal £

March 1, 2020

RE:19231 County Road 33 Groveland, Fl. 34736
Case NO. & Project Name: CUP-19-16-1 SaveaFox Sanctuary
To whom it may concern,

This letter is notice that the Sanctuary is not wanted at the above address. Not just due to the neighbors
privacy and wanting to continue our quiet lives, but the fact that the driveway is shared with ours, there
will be a lot of traffic, signs etc.. We just put over $10k into our driveway and not needing that ruined
only a couple months after we did this. We do not give permission to have Public and Business use
across or accessed by our property.

Even if they were to make their own entrance, there would still be attention drawn to our now quiet
area due to the fact that in the papers it stated educational tours and events of over 500 people. From
what I was told by Ms. Raines mother, there is only going to be 6 parking spots. Where do you think
those 500 people will try to park??? Even if they were to open the gate and let them park back more on
the property, there is not enough room with the home that is there, shed, and all the homes for the
animals which showed about 16 on the plans I saw. Even if it were only 50, that is still too much!
They get deliveries of donations also from Amazon, UPS, Fedex, we dont need this business next door
and yes it is a business. This is a residential area with homes on each side of this property and we wish
to keep our privacy and quiet neighborhood.

It is not wanted by any of the neighbors, they have chickens, cows, horses and goats and do not want
them bothered by the animals and we certainly do not want to be bothered by the noises. I moved out
of Orlando for a reason, peace and quiet. I pointed out to Sandy (Mikaylahs mom) that there were 3
other properties with homes on them and their own driveways in Groveland for sale, plus there are
other properties that they can go to without disturbing our peace.

Please take in to consideration the property owners in the area (petition attached) that do not want them
here. A few of them told me they have already had to shoot coyotes roaming their properties and will
not hesitate to shoot the foxes also. They don’t want the coyotes on their properties as they come after
their chickens and a few of them mentioned that this being close to us would attract more of the wild
animals as they smell the animals. We certainly do not want that either. If the permit is allowed and
Z.oning approves their own driveway, Saveafox must record in a deed benefitting the property
owner to the burdened property release of the easement. Thank you for your time.

Signed,

Lisa Brauer

19317 County Road 33 Groveland, Fl. 34736 407-721-5905



. We, the neighbors and property owners surrounding ‘19231'Cou‘nty Road 33 Groveland, Fl. 34736, hereby petition against the Saveafox Corporation
© moving on to and opening the business/rescue. This will bring unwanted attention to our now quiet and secluded neighborhood, especially with 2
. residential homes touching the property and currently sharing access from oﬁ"driveway

Even if there were a separate driveway, there Is still one property that sharesthe drive. Signs will be put up, deliveries made for the donations of food, i
hedding, etc...

. We demand this permit not be allowed,

PETITION

Full Name Email address Mailing address Telephone
AdSH_BR ML Lyneriee @yt ) Lan | 1997 21033 Sethwlonn | 07 Fol/~ STOS5
Smﬂw BUatucr H L L X Y0790~ Y SO
.__fﬁﬁaxz%ébm. TONCIG44 Yo 211 SeOl ; - = 7
\S("a?‘f Ahlﬁ/f. o // (ol e 24 y “‘/. ot <
Wik e | ‘S{«la‘ L @l - dy ﬁ%mmzw
A < (2207 cc 3D Ganelad 370 | 352 - TEY- 494
N SenuTt e LA ARG LN [ 252-Blo-28 A
W= = 2o Levfin [U70 37a 4702
Clopwdes V. | ClAll doy | MO b g - 2313
(. ‘//,ﬁr S | 72435 [ 35 BIA - A - 18T
. L k gor) /%w i 3} Zrm %o,(~ W,W
oy A Y ’, ‘ ! &4 5 ‘/ S &

Dec319e apleom | 19507 0 23 Gipelind [BBAIY 19 1
ee 319 @ aol.coml[9507 ma“s@wue, gnd B352R6 11197
243y Mww:ﬁw Dol , -
715 DA LE@FO @ \ZAHCO . Coty 7P Fagne T (38 2] 2127715
(WA amm@w( Y62, _T%f{/‘s{qgg (SCA M:m Z86F292
Q@*@’ Me UA,AA’ 0,!"/? {2 g 1§ 57 /J“;lcﬂm ;ld
4 1Daniel T Hislop Jr A("A‘y\.ﬁw ' 4 3 (/rwelhmn ~€.29 ~1193

.SM\\\Qe RUWY

NJU} ¢

A5 772 ~ 2414

WL KL







8
e s >

) % 1o L afied

e & Zih -
T —— -
H . -
! : -
i -
H T
i el
!
4
N

Lo ) ¢t “f

G | oTESL NP 57
~l AT B "
CQ 0g.
RS Y .

I3 2 w
’ S v
! e N H %\.
: .
i3 i
: e H
. \\}/, -7 /. )
! 7 A '
; : t ' :
i . - N L H
H P PR
§ i
$ M
: S - -
i el -
n ~ K e
; ]
S Prpp iy Y Hh
sypong Snsforepoy o sery ON
LD H 1
w «M@NW/*OW.;( )CW@JMM“..I
L y busaush wpyeoed oOLY
Mo’ H
- i rla..«f«a\.q.im M
L Speeon isiE g :
™~ iT - 3T i
i M Ao‘.} :
= T HERY
BN R ST e tia
o g i , g2
il { -
i3 sk
. . b

! - S ANEF NG
’ . : AROSE N FRIATYTY

H B
) A ; AT eI et
i o i £
sepey ey g
Ty - ! S e300 We B aars ¢ ST ddy
:

R A Lt .\\»..
=T YRep %WOHMWMM
P PR TERg TIOR 1 2aag AT

RS

Ly o 2 -
~&TT 2 Y ) 2
.X = v

1

i

Y

. 9 %nm,ﬁbu\rqéwx m%%
M ) . ; N =2
weg ,f,ma N :

. .\ murﬂuu/\whw LH»,\VJM\»M

wﬂa 4 { 5\.\ is7ne | n M m ~y72% Gpl n.:.m\mw
B[ 1089100 — g, LIaIiXT -

(1-91-6102-dn0) Aenjoues xofeones
XX-0Z0Z# SoueupIO



] &6 5

Cons having Save a Fox Sanctuary Next to Residential Properties:

The sounds the foxes make are high pitched screaming — one may not be disturbing, but
multiple can be quite a disturbance for nearby homeowners.

Foxes are known to have a unique smell and within their urine and feces, this would
diminish the air quality to homeowners in the surrounding area. Nearby residents have
asthma and allergies and the air quality could cause possible increased complications.

There are raccoons, coyotes, bobcats and other foxes and alligators have been seen in
this area throughout the years. Rabies could easily be transferred if rescues are not
caged and monitored.

The property value of surrounding homeowners would depreciate having such a
sanctuary to nearby residents.

There are young children and small domestic animals that would be adjacent to the
location of the fox's cages.

The 6ft enclosed cages to house the rescued foxes are approximately only 130 ft from a
residential home. There is a lot of property on Safe a Fox Sanctuary’s parcel to house the
cages somewhere other than that close to the door of a residential home with young
children and small animals.

As a 40-year resident of this property — it is a known fact that it can become very wet
with standing water. This would increase the smell of urine and feces in the proximity of
residential homes and flies would become an increased problem as well.

The land may be zoned as agriculture land, but it is also susceptible to flooding as most
of the land is zoned wetlands.

Stipulations if Save a Fox Sanctuary is Approved:

There needs to be a well/pump instalied on Save a Fox Sanctuary property and ALL
water sources from the well/pump on adjacent property of Angela D Bogart should be
disconnected to ALL buildings and faucets on the property of Save a Fox Sanctuary.

If this Sanctuary is approved to house rescue foxes, there needs to be a fence and
vegetation barrier on the property line to the nearby residential homes to eliminate
some (would not eliminate all) noise and view. Keep in mind, this would stifl not
eliminate the smell or flies.

Questions and/or Concerns if Save a Fox Sanctuary is Approved:

What other animals will be permitted to be housed on property?

How often will property inspections be made to assure Save a Fox Sanctuary is operating
within County guidelines? Owner has been known to house more animals than
permitted (see articles)



What actions will be taken if any of the animals escape from Save a Fox Sanctuary?
Owner has had animals escape in the past. (see articles)

Will someone reside on Save a Fox Sanctuary’s property at all times to assure the safety
of all animals and the safety of the adjacent properties with small children and animals?

Why has there been loud music late at night and multiple gunshots fired late at night
coming from Save a Fox Sanctuary’s property in the past few months?



e 3676475
3676491 D o, ¥ [

3676441

5GKORY

LR ) S2MA ’ 3 3 ‘;. =T
3907178 o ¥ 3 3676394 3676378

R00T




L1 53 WA
3677331




k 3676394

.




IJ-‘/ll

: 3676401 a 3676441
3676467 "KU :

e

o 3676356
3677528 g 3"9093]
ﬂ ¢

3577%575998 b Al
. 3676950

] ; '3
e 3676521
7“9&‘1 :

KL

35786:2@ 3678702?

245

3676737 Xeaetl 36737%';

3678699 _
. e ~ 3681!444 ;36815413681584 1681614, o /1
1) s UTHSESTSBQ 136761181 ’,f'
20 1:2,500
0 0.0275 0.055
I 1 . 1 l 1 1
I T T T T T T
0 0.045 0.09
le 1

X006






AR DR

VN ZON HEOW IvHOTOW R
WONY ISy FHL, T

OF Sael IRTVIE — L 253R63¥ 2eNVH>. ONINGZ T

. % . ir.i.l“\\ _ . ,,../.uu'f.,. T : WM ]
M00D FILITT , SO B

R T : . ) , . . WWH@JH MOOU




Location

Map of Subject Property

lemn[wew_-og—--

" 'KEEDX-RD:-

L

QY ITNASIAG=——"—"——- =2

A~ (31 r28)

RZ-19-29-5, Create Conservatory

Page 5 of 8



EEFFL12/18/2002

3883868%

5030l e
[CentralEenent Districe

A
commissiB5u B
Diseriee 3

|
<&

2863030

20

2863064 F
LLD S
1201270074
R Rural et

g

$2017:58:5)

812060C0190E &

86309

2 9,
LLD)

FIN VIEW;DRE== %
[ v 5=

2863013

ADYAVAKEATOWNIGOFE
UADYA'AKERTOWNIGE

AR / {
[Central(Benefit|Districtiilranspotation!

: 11239 977k
28630251

Rirey

LS
198120053

:

25:187.66!

(ORB]

17209/1290

lumn A
‘ m IR CRIOAE se
6}
- I,

1

iz

E

[~3 e
4

B

Rural i

2005L-0250

=

2863056

e

p2 15

ﬁm‘



http:lAl!1Jt:.IJ

RW comar of SE 174 of
Rslﬂ-lswviur

Found 4" ottogon M
with no nomber,

34 wood post flg D.5' Scuth,

GREEN GEORCE F LTD
Abarriata,

HAZARD, XY #1701-1510

Found 1/2" Yron rod
‘mbrker G{wnz
Comar falls In hegde row.

.

CLUDED

NOT

3 18" Stump of recent’
INCLUDED gy in o T
; LAXE, L 321 Tine. noT IN

15.70°

s X oapas
S4%0 mlrru;fm OR

cLUDED
LADY LAKE. FL 32130

gh
=

N fine of SE !& of NE 174 of SW 1/4 of Sectlon 24-18-24.

662.11 o

NBY'S220°W Desc

-
je)
Z 3

"26'2

S

Lonsscaped orece
(typlcal)

i
Lonescoped orece”
(typlca)

W fine of SE 1/4 of NE 1/4 of SW 1/4 of Sectlon 24~18-24,

e

CROWN PLACE
Right of Way by Non-exclusive Easement Deed

Right of Way

" g‘)m& 862.12" Desc

Ricrto:\\'una\ A(‘r.o._

o
Metal pole concrete bose.

Alternate Key #2863013
3.197 Acres

Bottom section of towar

B

Motal pala with plotform on top.
(typical)

76{:5. A Goscer

POINT OF BECHNING.

R o o & 174 of
4

L3R

\Fmd Squdra CMl with
mdumhunnnh;p

257 Pipa lies 0.8 North of zorhar.

A1

RE &

L

& 4
~
g © §
3 w I -
3 Q - ° 3
£ =] . -
- 3
= - PEASE PAULNE R _ Q E
o [S) Altnate Key: 1736377 FL
3 - e U\"&\ ¥ UC 3
= e 'g
w 3

g &

g s -

£ X o

g ¥ =

NE ©

(b 2

52

03

zz

Concrate

recorded in O. R. Book 4431, Page 926.

50

Right of Way

x-& BI1.86' le
o1 611.65 weas This bold line represents the boundaty line. \/’ 1
T S89°33'32°E ween '
ound 4° -quwu CM with s SIS Coums
Sk NOT INCLUDED ity e
LADY LAKE, FL 3150

MDTZ j

Shaced well 15
/70/- /DCo_'{EJ on %ﬂ

Subfi et /74 wee .

Mﬁ}(/'mu»a« Student Cofauﬁ - §o
Hogimom SFafe F '

-\
Roea\ FLUC
BOUNDARY SURVEY

in Section 24, Township 18 South,
Range 24 East, Lake County, Florida

11 Found 4" round €M
morked RLS 1571,

809.18"
S0 24"y

~

d remolnd of nal \
und plats n povemaent.

~
a8
g
i
South 1/4 ¢om
Suctlon 24~ l!—l« -
47 round CM os . \
par CCR 73076.

upue PR

.pacy s

pesat @

Description
Begin: at the Northeast comer of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of the
Southwest 174 of Section 24, To'niﬂp 18 South, Rangs 2% East, Loke County,

nrld; run thence North ‘89'52'20" West dlong the North line of_said Southeast

1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 57 the Southwest 1/4 a distonca of 662.12 feet to
the Northwest comer of the Southeast 178 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest
174, thence South DO'D118" West clong the Weat line of acid Southeast 1/% of
the Noritieast 1/4 of the Sw!hvat 1/4 @ distonca of 71.78 fast; thence
South 89'58'41” East, 50.00 fest; thence South 00°01'13” West, 150.09 feet,
thence South 89°52'33" East 511.85 fest to the Eost line of the Southeast
1/4 of the Northeust 1/4 of the Soutiwest 1/4; thence North 00105'20" East
dong said East line, 221.74 Teat to the Paint of Beginning.

(Description wos tdan from OR Book 1573, Poge 0523, La%a County, Flerkéa)

Certified to: (Cartification is limited to persoris/porties nomed below)
Nicols Dualok &
CREATEConsarvatory

That this survey was preparad by me or under my dirsct supervision
and that oll visible bourdary Ihn. focptions o
:::r?gc“f mﬂ e °b‘:h d and thet any mw:-m

o ora showh
dumpnmju be!w:; the u::l Gastription -.u M;:hﬁ‘
survey and any markers on the oting the dury os
acluu{ly used an otcuphyd, ora a@lﬁcfld v

- 7/3s /1

Bradley K. Minnix  PLS 4559, State of Florida

{Survay map ond report or the coples thereof are not valld withoat
the signature ond the original seal of a Florlda licensed

surveyor and mappsr.)

Abbreviations '
CM = Conérets Monument

IR = Iron-Ri

et Sheet _1_ of _1

Descﬁ‘ggguhuu ( §

O = ofid Rezores ”UNDARY SURVEY

2%".; . ;!m‘ "in Settion 24, Township 18 South,
S LU By Range 24 East, Lake County, Florida
LEGEND B.K.MINNIX

g L ol e

@ = Condrate Monument
—ou—= Qugrhead utllity lines
B = Contrets pad .

GRAPHIC SCALE
» .

({WFET)
1 inch = S0 ft

NOTES

1. The &ubm ‘ond ingtructions for tis Survey were fumished

N‘ulnﬁﬁnwﬂﬂl-m c..'.“ﬁ,‘éu'f‘n;&n.
s o o s,
-rm ntmkmdh&hnmyw

i m &’
evnmcaxh' S ""’;u that -uuld Y
dinclossd by L

 accapls ng for the m':hlm

ty~of—way ond

b
ﬂ;\'l{l, property. This | 49 subject to any
md'- %Wm«mmmmm

8. M]Mﬂhbcvx:uwmmnm
&-. Lk thargs ors TRoke T pit oa.
%:“;““ ond et o e é‘&:r.n-d

any miel
xwﬂ dhdftnt and, nr
ih & Surveyor namber uppeors hareon

7. N am% obr then M No und'l;vgrwnd

8 lnwtﬂl li vt A
A Flood
Tnvra @%’E' effciive dite Dacsmber
18.'1@11 gwﬁ’ i Zone X
o mvm urvey dovs fiot oddreyy .enviconmental matters,
Jue Boundaries or hezordous wastes Toncertis ghould
ﬁifﬁ:w st
10. | wos-not ey sozemant ::-:tpn'm Hf?- m-d :c;m-nliu
nm‘ﬂ Eost boundary or for the un oul
& N"mmf- m’n "“:n forianad by the dtnt.
o ®
13, Al distonces ara meosured unless aﬂ i
13, The wotsr well wow not visble.

CUBNT: Dusiak_-
FIELD DATE: Nov-23, 2019
Fiad Book Dusizk ARZHG3C13.5ec2411024DAT
SGALE: 1 Inch =-30 Feat
Duslak AX2863013_Sec241824.D%G
=

o sn—p—

Drown by: BKM | Checked by: Bg




	PZB Minutes 03.04.20
	PZB exhibits 3-4-20




Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		03.04.20 - PZB Minutes Packet.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 1



		Passed: 29



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top



